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DISTRICT IF NR SPECIFY
Os [Owr l () acwal [ Potential
1. BUILDING NAME (Common) (Historic) . .
ETlizur Goodrich House Goodrich, Rev. Elizur, House
2. TOWN CITY VILLAGE CQUNTY- .
z Durham Durham Middlesex
; 3. STREET AND NUMBER (and orlloc:auon)
3| 42 Main Street, east side
@ [aGwWNERTS
E | Jenne C. Goldner ' Clpubtic X private
g 5 USE (Present) ] (Histore)
= | Residence I Residence
EACCESSIBILITY EXTERIOR VSIBLE FROM PUBLIC ROAD INTERIOR ACCESSIBLE TF YES EXPLAIN
TO PUBLIC: Yes D No l D Yes NO'
7. STYLE OF BUILDING DATE OF CONSTRUGTION
Colonial ‘ 1763
8. MATCSRIALI(S) (Indicate use or luocation when appropriate) ] Oth
ther
Clapboard D Asbestos Siding D Brick D (Sp:cify)
D Wood Shingle D Asphalt Siding D Fieldstone
D Board & Batten D Stucco D Cobblestone
Aluminum Concrete Cut stone s
Siding Typer Type: mortared sandstone foundation
9 STRUCTURAL SYSTEM
Wood frome Post and beam D balloon D Other (Specify)
D l.oad bearing masonry D Structural iron or steel
10 ROOF iTvpe) .
Gable D Flot D Mansard D Monitor D sawtooth
Other
z D Gombrel D Shed D Hip D Round D tSpecify)
Q
= 'Moterial)
= Roll
o .
§ El Wood Shingle Asphalt D Tin D Slate
g Other

E Asphalt shingle D Built up D Tile D'SpeCIfy‘

11 NUMBER OF STORIES| APPROXIMATE DIMENSIONS

2.1/2 main: 41'x31.6'; garage: 27'x23.6

Y2 CONDITION (Structural: tEXterior)

Excellent D Good D Fair G Deteriorated Excellent D Good D Fair D Deteriorated
13 INTEGRITY (Low ottt WHEN 7 t A lterationsg IF YES EXPLAIN

[x] 9 eriginal [T | ved Yes [ Jno |two east additions

14 RELATED OUTHUILDINGS OR LANDSCAPE FEATURES

D Barn D Shed Garage Other landscape feotures or buildings ! Specify) swimming pOO]

D E:Lrsi:ge D Shop D Garden

15 SURROUNDING ENVIRONMENT
l Wood- ] .
Open land land [E Residential L./ Scattered buildings visible from site

Indus-
D Commercial ,:‘;a‘;s D Rural 'E High building density

16 INTERRELATIONSHIP OF BUILDING AND SURROUNDINGS

The Elizur Goodrich House stands on a cleared half-acre lot on the south side of
Durham's Main Street, opposite the Green.

(OVER)



17 OTHER NOTABLE FEATURES OF BUILDING OR SITE ninterior and or exteriorn

One of Durham's finest examples of mid-eighteenth-century colonial architecture, the
Elizur Goodrich House is a traditional Connecticut Colonial, with a central chimney, a
double overhang, and rectangular proportions of the two-room-deep house plan. The ex-
terior of the house is replete with small ornamental touches which are both atypical for
Durham and indicative of the builder's efforts to strive for stylishness: the windows,
which are replacement six-over-six's, are framed with crown-moulded cornices; the corners
of the house are decorated with beaded cornerboards. The elegant doorway, which is orna-
mented with fluted pilasters, broken entablature with dentiled course, botanical motif
carvings on the pilaster caps, the front door with two panels and two glass toplights

in each of its two leaves, and the pediment are modern additions. (SEE CONT. SHEET)

‘Continued)

DESCRIPT

W8 ARCHITECT BUILDER

19 HISTORICAL OR ARCHITECTURAL IMPQRTANCE

This house was built for the Rev. Elizur Goodrich, minister of Durham's First Con-
gregational Church between 1756 and 1797. Born in Rocky Hill in 1734, Goodrich prepared
for Yale under the Rev. James Lockwood of Wethersfield. He graduated from the college
in 1752 and served as a tutor there until he was called to the pastorate in Durham. In
1759 he married Catherine Chauncey, granddaughter of his predecessor in the pulpit.
Shortly thereafter he built this house, which stood opposite the original site of Durham's
meeting house. Goodrich was one of Connecticut's leading clergymen in the second half of
the eighteenth century and was, in recognition of this fact, elected to the Corporation
of Yale College in 1776. He was awarded the honorary degree of Doctor of Divinity by the
College of New Jersey (now Princeton) in 1783. He was, not surprisingly, a local cultural
leader, serving for many years as clerk of the Durham Book Company, one of the nation's
earliest libraries. He was also a founding member of another private library, the
Esothian Society. His association with the Esothian Society, which later gained notoriety
as an"infidel" Tliterary society, may seem surprising in view of his position as leader of
Durham's ecclesiastical establishment. But it should be remembered that Goodrich was a
member of that generation of American intellectuals who, profoundly affected by the 1dea§
of the European Enlightenment, were much bolder in their willingness to deal with new
ideas than those who either preceded or succeeded them. Goodrich was a contemporary of
Ezra Stiles, who had graduated at Yale in 1746, taught Goodrich as a student, and later
shared responsibilities as tutor in the College. Goodrich's admission (SEE CONT. SHEET)

SIGNIFICANCE

Durham Land Records; Durham Vital Records; Middletown Probate Records; Federal Census of
1820, 1850, 1880; Beers, J. B., History of Middlesex County, Connecticut (New York: J. B.
Beers & Co., 1884); Durham History Committee, Durham, CT, 1866-1980: Century of Change
(Durham: 1980); Fowler, William C., History of Durham (Durham: W. C. Fowler, 1866);
Whited, Milton, Durham's Heritage (Durham: 1976); 1859 Walling Map; 1874 Beers Atlas.
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REV. ELIZUR GOODRICH HOUSE, Durham

17 cont'd
The house stands on a cut sandstone block foundation, which is laid in regular courses.

The Goodrich House has experienced minor alterations in the 220 years since it was
built. 1Its original central chimney, which was probably built of stone, has been re-
placed with painted concrete blocks above the roof Tine (although the house retains
its original six fireplaces). A modern single-story gable-roofed addition has been
made to the rear of the house, to which is connected a modern two-car garage.

19 cont'd

to the Yale Corporation in 1776, one year before Stiles was invited to become president,
was undoubtedly a victory for the ecclesiastical moderates in Connecticut and paved the
way for Stiles' election. During Stiles' presidency Yale was noted as a center of
scientific experimentation and intellectual ferment verging on infidelity (Morgan: 1962).
Given this, it is not surprising to find the Rev. Goodrich in the company of those so
actively questioning established doctrines.

Like many Connecticut ministers of his time, Goodrich supplemented his modest salary
by preparing students for entrance to Yale. His students included E1i Whitney, the
inventor of the cotton gin and "Father of the American System of Manufactures," and
William Botsford, Chief Justice of New Brunswick. He also prepared his sons for Yale.
The most distinguished of them, his namesake Elizur, became Mayor of New Haven, a member
of Congress, and Yale's first teacher of law.

Goodrich died in 1797, but his widow lived on until 1830. Five years after her
death the house was sold by the Goodrich heirs to Zebulon Hale and Enos Rogers, who ran
a store nearby. In the 1840s Rogers sold out his interest in the property and the store
was operated under the name of Hale & Davis. The house remained in the hands of the
- Davis family until 1942. It passed to its present owners in 1964.

The Elizur Goodrich House is historically significant as the home of Durham's
second minister, who was one of the state's intellectual leaders during the Revolutionary
and Early National periods.



